M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 30, 2002
9: 46 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 81, Side A
SFC 02 # 81, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:46 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Auster man

Senat or Donal d O son

Senator Lyda G een

Senator Loren Lenan

Al so Attending: REPRESENTATI VE PETE KOTIT; JANE W NEI NGER, Staff to
Senat or Green; JERRY BURNETT, Staff to Senator G een; ROBERT REGES,
Attorney representing the Al aska Forest Association; DON ETHERI DGE,
AFL-CI G  STEFANIE MADSON, Vice President, Pacific Seafood
Processors  Associ ation; BARBARA  HUFF  TUCKNESS, Director,
Governnental and Legislative Affairs, General Teansters Local 959;
KRI' S NOROCSZ, CGovernnent Affairs, Icicle Seafoods;

Attending via Tel econference: From Delta Junction: PETER FELLNAN,
Staff to Representative John Harris; From Fairbanks: JOHN BROWN,
President, Central Labor Council; DON LOAREY; ED FLANAGAN,
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent; From
Anchorage: RICH MASTRIANO, Director, Division of Labor Standards
and Safety, Departnent of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent; O f-net:
ROBERT WELLS, Director, Division of Agriculture, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

SB 353- AGRI CULT. PROG COCRDI NATOR/ ANl VAL FEED

The Conmittee heard fromthe sponsor and the Departnent of Natural

SFC- 02 (1) 04/ 30/ 02



Resources. A conmttee substitute and an anendnent were adopted.
The bill was held in Conmittee.

SB 355-LET ME HELP ACCOUNT

The Commttee heard from the sponsor and reported the bill from
Commi ttee.

HB 504- WAGES FOR WORKERS | N FI SHERI ES

The Commttee heard fromthe sponsor, the Departnment of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent and representatives fromthe seafood industry
and | abor unions. The bill was held in Commttee.

#SB353

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 353( RES)

"An Act relating to the labeling of animal and poultry feeds
and to the agriculture program coordi nator; and providing for
an effective date.™

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

JANE W NEI NGER, Staff to Senator Geen, testified this bill relates
to agricultural progranms and creates an Agricultural Coordinator
position within the Division of Agriculture to oversee organic crop
i nspections, feed | abeling and noxi ous weeds.

Ms. Wneinger noted Alaska is the only state without a feed
| abel ing process and that currently sone feed inports into the
State contain weed seeds. She asserted Al aska has a problemwth
noxi ous weeds, although not as serious as in other Wstern states
that nust spend mllions of dollars on eradication. She instructed
how noxi ous weeds inpact the agriculture |lands, railroad right-of-
ways, and hunting | ands.

PETER FELLMAN, Staff to Representative John Harris, testified via
tel econference fromDelta, that the industry requested assistance
inthis matter. He told that as the agriculture industry has grown
in the State, the issue of noxious weeds has increased; however,
little funding has been provided to the Division of Agriculture.

M. Fellman infornmed that the federal governnent changed the
standards regarding the definition of organic and this |egislation
woul d update State statutes to match the federal provisions. He
stated the Agricultural Coordinator would nonitor the farmers to

SFC- 02 (2) 04/ 30/ 02



ensure they neet the organic standards.

M. Fellman reiterated Alaska is the only state that does not
nonitor the |labeling of feed. He stressed that with the outbreaks
of mad cow disease, feed |abeling has becone inportant. He
expressed intent to verify that feed producers in Al aska are using
the ingredients they claim as well as ensuring that rendered
ani mal parts, which could include contam nants, are not used.

M. Fellman listed the third purpose of the Agricultura
Coordi nator to control noxious and invasive weeds. He noted that in
the previous year, funding was secured to attenpt to control
noxi ous and advanci ng weeds. He specified Canadi an Sow Thistle, a
hearty three to six foot tall rhizone plant that is difficult to
eradicate and kills grass. He noted the plant has mgrated north
and is present in the Fairbanks area. He expressed concern that
this weed woul d endanger native plant species.

M. Fell man warned that addressing the probleminmmediately is the
only way to control these weeds w thout expending mllions of
dollars. He indicated efforts have begun, but that a statew de
coordination is necessary. He also spoke of the inportance of
docunenting the presence of invasive weeds to obtain federal
funding to address the matter.

M. Fellman admtted the fiscal note is significant, but cautioned
that if the problens are not controlled the |long-termcosts woul d
be consi derably higher.

Senat or Ward noved to adopt CS SB 353, 22-LS1663\J, as a working
draft

Senat or O son obj ect ed.

Senator O son asked the nunber of mll feed operations in the
St ate.

M. Fellman listed three and noted Al aska MII and Feed has voi ced
support of this |egislation.

ROBERT WELLS, Director, Division of Agriculture, Departnent of
Natural Resources, testified via teleconference from an off-net
site in Palmer to note there mght be an additional mll feed
oper at or.

Senat or O son asked about input from other operators.

M. Wlls answered that the only business that has offered an

SFC- 02 (3) 04/ 30/ 02



opinion on this legislation has been Alaska MII| and Feed.

M. Wlls did not anticipate any opposition fromthe manufacturers,
noting they currently | abel products in accordance to the | aws of
the State of Washington. He assured the Division "is commtted to
working with the feed producers,” and he was confident the
Department could establish an effective working relationship with
i ndustry and not inpose onerous regul ati ons on the businesses. He
enphasi zed the feed | abeling issue has arisen due to concerns about
rendering plants and the contents of food fed to aninmals. He shared
that the Federal Drug Admnistration has indicated the State
Di vision should have greater participation in the nonitoring of
f eed manuf acturers.

AT EASE 9:58 AM/ 10:01 AM

Senator O son stated his intent to hear directly fromindustry on
this legislation, as it is their livelihood that is affected by the
feed they produce.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if Senator O son had specific objections with
the provision in the proposed conmttee substitute.

Senator (dson had no specific objection to the conmttee
substitute.

Aroll call was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR. Senator Ward, Senator W/ ken, Senator Austerman, Senator
Green, Senator Hoffrman, Senator Lenman, Senator d son, Co-Chair
Donl ey and Co-Chair Kelly

OPPCSED: none

The notion PASSED (9-0)

The comm ttee substitute was ADOPTED as a working draft.

Senator Ward expressed he was unsure whether he clarified his
notion to adopt the conmttee substitute as a worki ng docunent and
surnm sed this caused conf usi on.

Senat or Hof fman understood that Senator A son's concern is wth

passing this bill from Commttee w thout input from the feed
pr oducers.
Co-Chair Kelly announced he would hold the bill in Commttee to

allow nenbers an opportunity to solicit opinions from feed
pr oducers.

SFC- 02 (4) 04/ 30/ 02



Senator Geen referenced a University of Alaska report titled
"Strategic Plan for Noxious and Invasive Plants Mnagenent in
Al aska". She stressed did not want the weed situation to advance
and becone as serious as in other states.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if there is a simlar bill pending in the
House of Representatives.

Senator Green affirmed.

Senat or Austerman asked if this legislation also addresses seed
products inported to the State for planting and whether it would
provide for certification of the absence of noxious weed seed in
t hese products.

Senator Green affirned.

M. Wells furthered that the Division "encourages" that inported
seed be certified. He understood that feed | abeling requirenments in
other states require disclosure of purity and germnation rates. He
noted that farmers are "pretty cautious” about the seeds planted to
avoid weed infestation in their fields.

Senat or Leman commented he is "skittish" about adding new State
positions, especially those established in statute. However, he
understood the necessity of this position and the inportance of it
serving an advisory function rather than having the authority to
close an industry. He hoped this position could be shared with the
University of Alaska, Cooperative Extension Service, Plant
Materials Center, to allow maxi m zed resource and mni m zed cost.
He expressed intent to pursue this option.

Amendnent  #1: This anmendnent provides that Section 7 of this
commttee substitute, which stipulates that this |egislation does
not apply to nmeat, fish or poultry, take effect July 1, 2002. This
amendnent al so inserts a new Section 14 to provide that Section 8,
AS 03.60.006. Agriculture program coordinator, of the conmttee
substitute take effect January 1, 2003.

Senat or Leman noved for adoption.

There was no objection and the anendnment was ADOPTED.

Co-Chair Kelly suggested Senator O son comunicate with M. Fell man
regarding his concerns about the inpacts of this legislation on

i ndustry. Co-Chair Kelly appreciated Senator O son's consi derations
for their interests.

SFC- 02 (5) 04/ 30/ 02



Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.
#SB355

SENATE BILL NO 355

"An Act establishing an account in the general fund to receive
general gifts, donations, and bequests to the State of
Al aska. "

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

JERRY BURNETT, Staff to Senator Geen, testified this bil
establishes a new account in the general fund titled the Let M
Hel p Account to allow those who want to pay taxes, or otherw se
i ncrease State revenues, to contribute. He noted the funds donated
to the State of Al aska would be treated as a charity and deducti bl e
fromfederal taxes.

Senator Ward asked if the bill contains a provision to allow an
applicant for a permanent fund dividend to donate the dividend
directly to the State treasury by an indication on the application.

M. Burnett replied that currently there is not, that the dividend
check nust be received then donated. He noted this has been
di scussed, as well as a provision that would transfer funds to the
Let Me Help Account in the anount of the dividends of those
qgual i fying residents who do not apply for a dividend.

Senator Lenman liked the idea. He relayed a conversation at West
H gh School whereby students expressed to himthat they would forgo
di vidends for the benefit of the school and their education. He
stated that he produced a basket to collect dividend checks and
announced he would forward the funds to the Departnment of Revenue.
He inforned that at the end of this gathering, the basket contained
no checks. He opined, however, that he is supportive of providing
an opportunity for those who wish to contribute.

Senator Leman asked if these funds when appropriated by the
| egi sl ature woul d be consi dered general funds or receipt supported
servi ces.

M. Burnett replied the funds woul d be transferred fromthe Let M
Hel p Account to the general fund. He pointed out that if the
| egi sl ature appropriated the funds before this transfer occurred,
t hey coul d be accounted as non-general funds.

SFC- 02 (6) 04/ 30/ 02



Senat or G een expl ained the reason she sponsored this |egislation.
She told of varying correspondence she receives requesting either
significant taxation no taxation, and she realized there is no
consensus on the issue. She asserted that if donators wish to
designate the contribution for education, nedical care, or other
specific services, this option should be avail abl e.

Senator O son asked if there is a Ilimt of how nuch could be
donat ed.

Senat or Green thought the anount would be limtless.

M. Burnett clarified there are limts to the anount that qualifies
for federal tax credit. He understood this anount to be 50 percent
of gross annual income. However, he assured that any anount could
actual ly be contri but ed.

Senator O son clarified the donators coul d designate the funds.

M. Burnett corrected that the bill does not currently provide for
this.
Senator Geen offered a notion to "nove Senate Bill 355 out of

Commttee with individual recomendati ons.”

W thout objection SB 355 with Departnent of Adm nistration zero
fiscal note, dated 4/10/02, MOVED from Conmittee.

#HB504

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 504(FIN) am
"An Act relating to the wages of people working in the
fisheries business.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

[ This | egislation authorizes certain seafood processors to deduct
room and board expenses from enpl oyees' salaries under certain
ci rcunst ances. |

REPRESENTATI VE PETE KOTT testified this legislation would “go a
| ong way” help the "ailing" fishing industry in that it would allow
fish processors operating in renbte areas, to "penetrate the
m ni rum wage". He explained this would require a uni on-negoti ated
contract between the enployer and the enployee in an anount not to

SFC- 02 (7) 04/ 30/ 02



exceed $15 per day, and the enployee nust work m ninum of eight
hours before the deducti on could be made.

Representative Kott gave a history of this issue beginning with a
statute witten in 1959, which stipulates that on an occupati onal
basis, the Departnment [which departnment is not specified,] could
al |l ow enpl oyers to pay salaries bel ow the m ni num wage. He stated
this has been applied to cannery workers when, in accordance with
federal regulations, alternative public housing is avail able.

Representative Kott pointed out that in many renote seafood
processor |ocations, alternative housing is not available.
Therefore, he stated this |egislation would "in essence...redefine
occupation” in that it clarifies whether an enployee is in a
"renote" or "non-renote" position.

Representative Kott opined this |egislation "has brought fairness
back to the table". He rem nded that seafood processors operating
in a non-renote area has the ability to deduct room and board
expenses from enpl oyees' sal ari es.

Representative Kott noted that debate on this legislation in the
House of Representatives established that a charge of $15 per day
for room and board in seafood processing canps is reasonable. He
stated the enployer could deduct a higher amount if it could
denmonstrate that a higher anmount is "nore reasonable.” However, he
predi cted the enpl oyers woul d not undertake the effort required to
make such a denonstration

Senat or Wl ken asked if premuns are paid to enpl oyees working in
renote | ocations.

Representative Kott did not think so, although he deferred to the
seaf ood processor representatives. He understood salary is based on
mar ket factors. He surm sed that nost enployees who select the
renote |ocations do so to ensure "they are not engaged in any
extra-curricular activities where they mght spend their earnings,"
as their purpose is to work as many hours as possible to earn the
hi ghest anount possi bl e.

Senator W1l ken asked if other industries in Al aska practice this.

Representati ve Kott understood the other industries that are exenpt
from the Wage and Hour Act are listed in statutes, and that the
seaf ood processor industry does not have a total exenption. He knew
of no other industry located in renote areas that pays workers a
sal ary bel ow the mni numwage, wth the exception of a housecl eaner
working at a renote | odge. He commented that |oggers, guides, etc.,

SFC- 02 (8) 04/ 30/ 02



are usual ly paid higher salaries.

Senator W/ ken asked what entity would make the determ nation
whet her an enpl oyer could deduct nore than $15 for room and board
per day.

Representati ve Kott answered the Departnment of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent through a formal application process.

Senat or O son shared that he had worked a "slinme line" to earn
noney for college. He asked what provisions are nade for an
enpl oyee who m ght chose other arrangenents, such as "live in a
tent next to the facility." He renmenbered that sone facilities did
not have enough housing for all enployees.

Representative Kott predicted that nost processors would “want to
take care of their enployees.” He spoke of the free market and the
intent for the enployee to remain with the sanme enpl oyer for the
duration of the season. He stressed that processors conpete agai nst
each other and that $15 is the nmaxi num anount that could be
deducted and suggested that actual rates could be significantly
| ower. He agreed an enpl oyee could forgo the enployer's food and
| odging and sleep in a tent.

Senator O son noted the conpetitive nature is primarily the market
price. Therefore, he did not agree there is a conpetitive nature
that woul d benefit the enpl oyees.

Representative Kott replied that an enployer must hire enough
enpl oyees in the event of a large "run". He stated that if the
anmount of seafood received in an area were inadequate, the enpl oyer
woul d rel ocate the workers to another area experiencing a higher
harvest. He described seafood processing enpl oyees as wanting to
work and nake as much noney in as short a period of tinme as
possible as well as having an opportunity to visit Al aska.
Therefore, he surmsed potential enployees would consider the
salary and room and board deductions offered by each enployer
whi ch he stated is the conpetition

Senat or Austerman furthered the conpetitiveness is due to short
fishing seasons and the need to staff all seafood processing
facilities during the sanme period of tinme. He predicted that if
sal non prices rebounded, enployers would not charge for room and
board because of the conpetitive nature of obtaining and retaining
enpl oyees.

Senator W/ ken addressed the fiscal note and asked the savings this
| egi sl ati on woul d provide for seafood processors.

SFC- 02 (9) 04/ 30/ 02



Representative Kott estimated "in the mllions of dollars" given
the proposal to increase the State's mninmum wage. He again
deferred to representatives of the seafood processing industry for
nore precise figures. He relayed that in conversations with seafood
processors and through his research in the issue, he learned that a
few of the processors would go out of business. He stressed the
"biggest looser” in these cases are the conmunities where the
facilities are | ocated because of the |oss of the tax base.

ROBERT RECES, Attorney, testified on behalf of the Al aska Forest
Associ ation, that this legislation does not distinguish between
rural and urban work |locations with the exception of positions paid
bel ow the mninmm wage. He understood the necessity of this
| egi sl ation, as the proposed room and board deducti ons woul d reduce
an enpl oyee's wage bel ow the statutory m ni nrum anmount. He noted the
| oggi ng i ndustry deducts room and board expenses fromthe salaries
of its enployees working in renote | ocations; however, he stressed
t hese deductions do not inpact mninmum wage as the workers earn
hi gher sal ari es.

M. Reges expressed concern about testinony presented in other
| egi slative commttees by the Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent, which "suggests that the wurban/rural distinction
exists even if the deduction does not penetrate the m ni nrum wage."

He pointed out that neither State statute nor federal |aw provide
such a rural/urban distinction.

M. Reges asserted that this legislation is not inappropriate for
those industries that pay workers a m ni mum wage, but stressed it
should not <create an wurban/rural distinction. He asked the
Conmittee to "set the record straight” on this issue. He clarified
he does not request changes to the bill

M. Reges cited a poll conducted by the Al aska Forest Association

and concluded that the practice of charging a nom nal fee for room
and board in the canps has been a historical practice and currently
is "virtually universal”. He furthered that during a review of this
matter, he talked to "all the other industries in the State" and
found that at one tinme, Southeast Stevedoring had taken room and
board deductions in renote |ocations and that currently surveyors,
fishery workers and | oggers pay toward room and board expenses.

Senat or Leman noted the witness was given the opportunity to "set
the record strait" regarding the intent that this |egislation not
impact the forestry industry, which he just did. Senator Lenan
therefore surmsed it not necessary for the Conmttee to
specifically do so.

SFC- 02 (10) 04/ 30/ 02



SFC 02 # 81, Side B

Senator O son asked if the witness favors or opposes the bill

M. Reges reiterated that although Al aska Forest Association is not
directly inpacted by this fisheries-related |legislation, there is
concern by the precedent it could establish.

DON ETHERI DGE, AFL-ClI O of Al aska, testified in Juneau agai nst the
bill. He explained the organization's position that the industry
should not attenpt to neet its "bottom line on the workers,
especially the workers that are just barely scrapping by now " He
realized this legislation resulted frompending efforts to increase
t he m ni num wage. However, he pointed out that because | egislation

to increase the mni num wage has not passed, this bill should not
ei t her.
Senator Wl ken asked if this bill would go into affect regardl ess

of whether separate legislation to increase the m ni mumwage passes
the Legislature this session.

[ An unidentified speaker answered yes.]

STEFANIE MADSON, Vice President, Pacific Seafood Processors
Association, testified in Juneau and described the trade
association and its 11 nenbers. She noted the Association had 13
menbers the prior year but that a sal non processor operating in
Larson Bay has ceased operations, and a "floater"”, which operated
in Bristol Bay and the Aleutian |Islands, has chosen to remain in
Seattle for the season

Ms. Madson relayed the Association has been contacted by State
agencies and sone |egislators, asking what efforts could be
undertaken to assist the seafood industry. She listed tax credits
as one consideration, but noted a business nust first be profitable
in order to pay taxes. She informed that other options were
consi dered, but dism ssed due to the significant expense to the
State. She asserted however, that this |legislation would be "a tool
in the tool box" for processors to react to nmarket conditions and
to the "changi ng nature of the seafood industry."”

Ms. Madson conpared this tool to requests nade by conmercial
fishers to authorize the formation of associations to purchase
commercial fishing permts fromfishers. She qualified that neither
tool would be utilized by all of the seafood processors or all of

SFC- 02 (11) 04/ 30/ 02



the comercial fishers, but stressed the option would be avail abl e.
She was unsure of the nunmber of seafood processors that would
utilize the room and board deduction authorization and to what
extent it would be used. She reiterated Representative Kott's
assertions regarding the conpetitive nature of enployee recruitnent
for seafood processors.

Ms. Madson noted this bill has been anended to insert the $15
maxi mum daily deduction and the provision that an enpl oyee nust
work a m ni num of eight hours each day the deduction is nmade. She
stated these changes resulted from concerns raised by the
Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent about the possibility
of enployees earning a "zero paycheck working for the so-called
conpany store".

Ms. Madson pointed out many industries have been exenpted from wage
and hour mandates, including: shrinp pickers, many agricultural
positions, baby-sitters, workers on fishing vessels, and at-sea
seaf ood processors. Therefore, she surmsed this legislation is
not a "red herring” and is rather a "correction to what we believe
is an inequity in regulations.”

Ms. Madson addressed concerns voi ced about the distinction of wages
paid to workers operating in renote and non-renote | ocations. She
asserted, "The seafood industry cannot be described with the sane
adjectives.” She listed the differences in how the various seaf ood
processors operate: a sal non processor operating only in Southeast
Al aska; a salnon processor with facilities located in many areas of
the State, sone renote and sonme non-renbte; or a ground fish
processor operating in the Aleutian |Islands that does not process
sal non. She furthered that each conmpany handles transportation

laundry facilities, nedical expenses, and other issues differently.
She noted the "package" of an enployer is designed to attract and
retain enpl oyees, and that an enpl oyee accepts a package based on
t he needs of that enployee.

Ms. Madson enphasized the seafood processors industry is |abor
i ntensive and enploys many workers. She added it is one of the
remai ning industries wth entry-1level positions available for those
with no education or work history to develop skills that are
transferable to other industries.

Ms. Madson shared that the Association's goal is to contribute
further to the State's econony by devel opi ng val ue-added products.
She cautioned this would be difficult to acconplish if the industry
is not provided the necessary tools that provide flexibility to
adopt operations to the changi ng market needs.

SFC- 02 (12) 04/ 30/ 02



Ms. Madson nmintained that commercial fishers would not be
adversely inpacted by this legislation, although she could not
guarantee they would be paid higher anmounts. She asserted this
matter is a processor issue, not a harvester issue.

Senat or W1l ken repeated his earlier question regardi ng the anount
t he seaf ood processors would save if this |egislation were adopt ed.

Ms. Madson estimated the anmount to be "in the mllions" of dollars,
noting the cost of a mnimm wage increase would be tens of
mllions of dollars to one of the |argest seafood processors, as
indicated in witten testinony provided to the House Labor and
Comrerce Committee [copy not provided]. She qualified the
ram fications are unknown and exanpled the deduction of room and
board expenses from federal taxes. She stated, "So we're not sure
exactly what the benefit will be other than we know we need sone
tools to help us get through this difficult tine." She offered to
report to the Legislature in the future, how the industry has been
able to "take advantage" of the provisions in the |egislation.

Senator W1l ken asked if this legislation would be inplenented this
sumrer .

Ms. Madson replied that because the hiring process is already
underway to recruit workers for the Summer 2002 fishing season, the
new provisions would not be inplenented until the January 2003
season.

Co-Chair Kelly clarified this legislation is not |inked to other
| egi slation that increases the m ni mum wage because of potenti al
| egal issues. He remnded that a ballot initiative proposes to
i ncrease the m ni num wage. He suggested this bill could be held in
the Senate Rules Commttee to allow the Senate Finance Commttee to
hear the m ni num wage | egi sl ati on.

Co-Chair Donley agreed with the witness that there are numerous
exenptions to the m ni numwage | aws, many of which he concl uded are
"archaic" and sonme are "bad public policy". Therefore, he asserted
it is unacceptable to argue in favor of this |egislation based on
t he exi stence of other exenptions. He opined that this bill should
"rise or fall on its own nerit and not based on the fact that we
have a nucked-up, nessy existing |aw "

BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Director, Governnental and Legislative
Affairs, GCeneral Teansters Local 959, referred a letter dated
4/ 29/ 2002, from Gerald Hood, Secretary-Treasurer [copy on file].
She expl ai ned the Teansters and AFL-Cl O are on record opposing this
| egi sl ation, although few seafood processor enpl oyees are nenbers

SFC- 02 (13) 04/ 30/ 02



of either |abor organization, because the organi zati ons have an
interest in the conditions of all workers in the State. She
stressed that from a political and corporate perspective, this
| egi sl ation establishes a position regarding a multi-mllion dollar
i ndustry, wth many owners residing out of the State. She
under st ood sal non catch nunbers are reduced, but pointed out other
fisheries, such as Pollock harvests, have increased. She urged the
Commttee to consider the nmessage sent to mni mum wage workers,
"that even though you re going to be working 16 hours a day on a
slinme line, if you' re lucky to get that many hours..” She di sputed
statenents that the majority of these workers are "coll ege kids"
fromthe Lower 48, citing information provided by the Departnent of
Labor and Workforce Devel opnent indicating the average age of
workers in this field is 30 years.

Ms. Tuckness noted that with a collective bargaining agreenent
process, there is the opportunity to renegotiate in a few years if
an enployer is experiencing financial difficulty. She added that
t he enpl oyer nust provide proof as to the financial situation. She
remarked that this legislation instead establishes this provision
into | aw

Ms. Tuckness requested the Commttee consider other options to
assist the seafood processing industry "if indeed there are
probl ens. " She di sagreed that taking deductions from m ni nrum wage
wor kers i s appropriate action.

JOHN BROWN, President, Central Labor Council, testified via
t el econference from Fai rbanks against this legislation. He asserted
it is wong of industry to ask those who are |east able to help
i.e., workers paid the m ni num wage.

DON LOWREY, Busi ness Representative, [organization nane inaudi bl e]
testified via teleconference from Fairbanks in opposition to the
bill. He remarked that workers in the fishing industry are hard
wor ki ng, many have famlies, and that it would be wong for themto
"l oose noney" by working in rural locations. He surmsed the
conpani es "shoul d feel blessed" that people are willing to work in
renmote | ocations.

RI CH MASTRI ANO, Director, D vision of Labor Standards and Safety,
Department of Labor and Wb rkforce Devel opnent, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage that he is available to answer
guesti ons.

ED FLANAGAN, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Labor and Workforce

Devel opnent testified via teleconference from Fairbanks to
"strenuousl y" opposite the bill, as it is "bad public policy". He

SFC- 02 (14) 04/ 30/ 02



di sagreed with the sponsor’s testinony regarding the intent of the
first Alaska State Legislature in 1959 in establishing the Al aska
Wage and Hour Act. Wiile he agreed the statute provides that the
Departnent "may devel op regul ati ons that woul d govern the deduction
of room and board on an occupation basis,"” he pointed out no
regul ations were adopted during the eight guber nat ori al
adm nistrations, three political parties and 12 conm ssioners to
support such a deduction in renote |ocations. He noted the offer of
room and board provisions is to the benefit of the operators,
because if room and board were not available, there would be no
wor kers. He also agreed that in 1985 regul ati ons were enacted to
establish a process for the deduction of room and board expenses;
however, it "codified the practice of the Departnment” to exclude
renote locations with no alternative housing avail abl e.

M. Flanagan qualified that the Departnment's position is that room
and board expenses in renote | ocations should not be deducted from
wor kers' sal aries regardl ess of whether the worker earns a m ni num
wage. He inforned that M. Reges and the Al aska Forest Associ ation
is involved in lawsuit, which would determne the legality of the
Departnment's position

M. Flanagan stressed that certain seafood and agricultural
positions are specifically exenpted fromm ni rumwage |aws with the
intent to protect seafood-processing workers. He noted the
processors would benefit from the proposed room and board
deductions by mllions of dollars and pointed out this noney woul d
cone fromthe |lowest paid workers. He asserted that in the year
1999, 19,784 people were enployed in Al aska as "cannery workers",
and that 6,350 of these were Al aska residents with a nedi an age of
32 years. Therefore, he asserted the sub-m ni num wage woul d not
only be inflicted on guest workers.

M. Flanagan spoke of efforts by the Departnent and the seafood
processing industry to increase the nunber of Al aska residents
enployed in the industry. He appreciated this, but disapproved of
this legislation that would "help the industry on the backs of sone
of the | owest paid workers in the State.”

M. Flanagan expressed concern with the expressed intent of the
House Labor and Commerce Commttee that this |egislation be enacted
imediately to all ow processors to inplenent the deductions in the
current year. He noted the m ni num wage increase would not yet be
in effect, and the salary of workers currently earning $5.65 per
hour woul d be reduced to $4. 65 per hour or |ess.

M. Flanagan addressed the conpetition for enployees, surm sing
that if the salnmon prices increased, the processors would not

SFC- 02 (15) 04/ 30/ 02



di scontinue the room and board deductions. He pointed out that as
prices increase, the fishers, processors and the conmunities earn
nore; however, the cannery workers are paid the sane | ow wages.

KRIS NOROSZ, CGovernnent Affairs, lcicle Seafoods, testified in
Juneau about the US-owned conpany founded in Petersburg in 1965.
She supported the bill as it is an extension of "the current tool
that we have" to deduct room and board expenses in non-renote
| ocations. She pointed out the | anguage i s perm ssive rather than
mandat ory.

Ms. Norosz commented on M. Flanagan's statenent that this bill is
"riding on the backs of the |owest paid worker." She told of her
enpl oyment history with the conpany and the reduced retirenent
benefits and bonus paynents that are nade at the upper nmanagenent
l evel first and to entry-level workers |ast. She spoke about the
position of the chief executive officer that every enployee is
i nportant in making the conmpany successful and she noted he began
wor king for the conpany in an entry |evel position.

Ms. Norosz stated the seafood processing industry is conpetitive
and that it is expensive to replace workers m d-season, therefore
it behooves processors to provide incentives to retain enployees
for the entire season

Co-Chair Kelly asked the average anmount workers have earned at end
of a season

Ms. Norosz responded the ampunt varies depending on the fishery,
such as sal non or crab.

Co-Chair Kelly asked the exanple given to potential enployees
during recruitnent.

Ms. Norosz estinmated $5, 000.
Co-Chair Kelly asked the length of the season.

Ms. Norosz answered the season in Petersburg begins in June and
concl udes the end of August.

Ms. Madson clarified the Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent estimates of 13,000 seafood processor workers,
i ndi cates the anount to be approximately $7, 000.

Co-Chair Kelly pointed out this is for three nonths of work and

asserted it is therefore unfair to claimthat this legislation is
"doi ng anything on the backs of the | owest paid workers."

SFC- 02 (16) 04/ 30/ 02



Senator Leman referenced earlier testinony that the cost of the
m ni rum wage increase would be mllions of dollars and that the
i mpact of this legislation would be mllions of dollars. He asked
if this legislation does not pass, whether adjustnments would be
made to the price paid to fishers to account for the m ni num wage
i ncrease paid to cannery workers.

Ms. Norosz replied, "I guess what |'ve been trying to point out is
that | don't think there's any nore fat to cut.” She noted that in
| ocati ons where processors are authorized to make room and board
deductions, the anmounts deducted do not cover the cost. She pointed
out that mninmm wage earners in non-seafood processing |obs
| ocated i n Anchorage and other non-renote |ocations nust "still go
hone and feed thenselves.” She predicted it would be difficult for
these workers to provide three to four hot neals of unlimted
choi ces and anobunts of food at a cost of $15 per day.

Senator Leman was equally concerned about fishers seeking a fair
price. He noted that of all reductions nade by Icicle Seafoods, the
witness failed to list the reduced prices paid to fishers.

Ms. Norosz responded that adjustnents have been nmade to the prices
paid to fishers and to services provided, including tenders.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if gloves and raingear are provided to seafood
processi ng wor kers.

Ms. Norosz answered that Icicle Seafood provides this gear,
al t hough she was unsure about ot her conpani es.

Co-Chair Kelly listed the benefits to seafood processing workers
payi ng $15 for three neals and rent, and receiving gear, whereas
workers in other fields must purchase room board and gear
t hensel ves.

Co-Chair Kelly expressed intent to address separate |egislation
relating to the m ni num wage.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.

#
ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 11:16 AM

SFC- 02 (17) 04/ 30/ 02



